BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:
Case No. 5760
NEAL SHIGERU NISHIMOTO
38580 Lynxway OAH No. 2017020964
Palmdale, CA 93551 ‘

Pharmacist License No. RPH 45627

Respondent.

DECISION AND ORDER
The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.
This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on November 1, 2017.

It is so ORDERED on October 2, 2017.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President
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XAVIER BECERRA -

Attorney General of California
THOMAS L, RINALDI

Supervising Deputy Attorney General
DESIREE TULLENERS

Deputy Attorney General

.State Bar No, 157464

300 So, Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angcles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-2578
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804
Attorneys for Complainant.

BEFORF, THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Maiter of the Accusation Againsf;: : | Case No. 57 60
NEAL SHIGERU NISHIMOTO OAH No, 2017020964 -
38580 Lynxway ‘ . _
Palmdale, CA 935351 - : STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
: DISCIPLINARY ORDL
Pharmacist License No. RPI 45627 1S . A RDER
Respondent,
PARTIES

1.  Virginia Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy
(Board). She brought this action Solely_ in her official capacity and is represented in this matter by

Xavier Becerra, Attorney General of the State of California, by Desiree Tulleners, Deputy

“Attorney General,

2. Respondent Neal Shige‘ril Nishimoto (Respondent) is represented in this proceeding .
by attorney Jonathan K., Golden, Esq., wimse address is: 1055 E. Colorado Blvd., Suite 225
Pasadens, CA 91106, o | |

3. Onorabout August i9, 1992, thc‘ Board issued Phafmacist License No, RPH 45627
to Neal Shigeru Nishimoto ‘(Resplondent). The Pharmaéist License was in full fel‘qe and effect at
all times releva;ﬁt to the charges 151*()ught in Accusation No, 5760, and will expire on October 31,
2017, unless renewed, |
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JURISDICTION

- 4. Accusation No. 5760 was filed before the Board, and is currently pending against
Responc}én‘t. The Accusation and all other statutorily required documents were properly served
on Respondent on November 9, 2016. Respondent timely 'ﬁl’ed his Notiglze of Defense contesting
the Accusation, o |

5. A copy of Accusation No. 5760 is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by

reference,

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

6, Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and uﬁderjs.fands the
charges and allegations in Accusation No, 5760. Respondent has also carefully read, fully
discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order. |

7. Respondent is fully aware of his legal r1ghtq in this matter, including the nght foa
hearing on the charges and allcgatwnb i the Accusation; thc right to confront and cross-examine
the witnesses against him; the right (o present evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right

to th_e issuance of subpoenas o compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of

- documents; the right to recensideration and court review of an adverse decision: and all other

rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws,
8. Respondent voluntatily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and
every right set forth.above, |

CULPABILITY

9. " Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegat.ion‘in Accusation
No. 5760. -
| 10, Respondent agrees that his Pharmacist License is subject to discipline and he agfees
to be bound by the Board's probationary terms as scl, forth in the Diéciplinary Order below,

RESERVATION

11, The admissions made by Respondent herein are only for the purposes of this
proceediﬁg, or any othet proceedings in which the Board of Phatmacy or other professional

2
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licensing agency is involved, and shall not be admissible in any other criminal or ¢ivil
proceeding,

CONTINGENCY

12, This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board of Pharmacy, Respondent
understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board of Pharniacy may |
communicate directly with the Board regarding this 'stipulétion and settlement, without notice to
or participation by Respondent or his oounsel By sxgnmg, y the stipulation, Respondent
understands and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation
priot to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt thls stipulatlon
as its Decision and Order, the Stlpulated Scttlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or
effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action bétween the parties,
dnd the Board shall not be disqualified from further aétion by having cqnsidefed this matter,

13, The partics understand and égree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile|
copies of ﬂllS Stipulated Settlement and Dlsmplmeuy Order, including PDT and facqmnle
mgnatmes theteto, shall have the same force and cffect as the originals,

14, This Stipulated Setilement and Disciplinary Ord.er is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusivp embodiment of their agreement.
It supersedes any aﬁd all prior or confemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,
negotiations, and commitments (written or oral).' This Stiﬁulatéd Settlement and Disciplinary
Order may not be altered, amended, modiﬁed, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a
writing exccuted by an authorized representatiw of each of the parties. A

15. Inconsideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal procecding, issue and enter the following
Disciplinary Order: |

DISCIPLINARY ORDDR
I7' IS HEREBY ()RDERFD that Pharmacist License No, RPH 45627 issued to Respondent

Neal Shigeru Nishimoto is revoked. However, the revocation is stayed and Respondent is placed

on probation for five (5) years on the following terms and conditions,

3
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1. Obey All Laws

Respondent shall obey all state and federal laws and regulations.

Respondent shall report any of the following occm'feln.ces to the Board, in writing, within

seventy-two (72) hours of such occurrence:

. an arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation oanny provision of the
Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled
substances laws

. a plea of gu'ilfy or nolo contendere in any state or fedetal criminal proceeding to any
critninal complaint, information or indictment |

K a conviction of any ctime

, discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency
which involves respondent’s pharmaqist license or which is related to the practice of
.pharmacy ot the manufacturing, obtaining, hémdling, distributing, billing, or charging
for any drug, device or controlled substance. |

Failure to timély report such oceurrence shall be considered a violation of probation,

2 Report to the Board | o

i‘iespgndent shall report to the board quarterly, on a schedule as directed by the Board or its

designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed. Among other
requirements, respondent shall state in each report under penalty of perjury whether there has
been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Failue to submit timely reports
in a form as d_ilfected shall B(—: considered a violation of probation, Any period(s) of delinquency
in fsu.bmissibn of reports as directed may be added to the total period of probation, Moreover, if
the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall be automatically extended untill
such time as the final report is madq and accepted by the Board.

3. Interview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, respondent shall appear in person for interviews

with the Board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determined by the Board or
its designee, Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification to Board

4

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (Accusation Cass No, 5760) .




oy

K A

10
11
12
13
14

15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
29
26
27
28

Q=Y wn = w b

staff, or failure to appear for two (2) or mote scheduled interviews with the Board or its designee
during the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation.

4,  Cooperate with Board Staff

Respondent shall cooperate with the Board's inspection program and with the Board's
monitoring and investigation of respondent’s compliance with the terms and conditions of his
probation, Failure to cooperate shall be considered a vi o.l'a.tion" of probation, |

5. Contihuing Education |

Respondent shall provide evridénce‘ of efforts to maintain skill and knowledge as a
pharmacist as directed by the Board or its designee,

6.  Notice to Employers _

During the period of probatioﬁ, respondent shall notify all present and prospective
employers of the decision in case number 5760 and the terms, conditions and restrictions imposed
on respondent by the decision, as follows:

 Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen (15) days of
respondent underiaking any new employment, respondent shall cause his direct supervisor,
pharmacist-in-charge (including each new pharmacist-in—clmrge employed during respondent’s
tenure of employment) and owner to report to the Boatd in writing acknowledging that the listed
individual(s) has/have read the decision in case number 5760, and terms and conditions impose
thereby, It shall be respondent’s responsibility to ensure that his employer(s) and/or supervisor(s)
submit timely acknowledgment(s) to the Board, |

If respondent works for or is employed by or through a pharmacy employment service,
respondent must notify his direct supervisor, pliarmacist-in~charga, and owner at every entity
licensed by the Board of the terms and conditions of the Decision in case number 5760 in advance
of the respondent commencing work at each licensed entity. A record of this notification must be
provided fo the Board upon-request, 7

Furthermore, within thirty (30) days of the offective date of this Decision, and within fifleen
(15) days of respondent undertaking any new employment by or through a pharmacy employﬁent
service, respondent shall cause his direct supervisor with the pharmacy employment service (o
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‘be due and received each month by the Board on or before the same date as the date assigned for

and the terms and conditions imposed thereby, It shall be respondent’s responsibility to ensure
that his employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgment(s) to the Board.
Failure to timely notify present or prospective employer(s) ot to cause that/those
employer(s) to submit timely acknowledgments to the Board shall rbé considered 'a violation of
probation, |
"Employment" within the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time,
part-time, temporary, relief or pharmacy management service as a pharmacist or any
position for {ivhich_ a pharmacisi; license 18 a requirement or criterion for employment,
whether the reSpondent is an employee, independent contractor or volunteer.

- 7. " No Stlpervismn of Interns, Serving as I’harmacnst—m—Charge (PIC), Serving as
Demgnated Representative-in-Charge, or Serving as a Consultant

During the period of probation, respondent. shall not sypervise any intern pharmacist, be the
pharmacist-in-charge ot designated rcpresentative-in-charge of any entity licensed by the Boarg
nor serve as a consultant unfess otherwise specified in this ordér. Assumption of any such
unauthorized supervision responsibilitics shall be comzdowd a vmlatmn of pI‘Obdthl‘l

8. Relmbursement of Board Costs

As a condition precedent to suceessful cmﬁpletién of probation, respondent shall pay to the
Board its costs of investi gation and prosecution in the amount of $4,302.50. Respondent shall
make equal monthly payments to reimburse the entire amount of gosts within the first twenty-four-
(24) months of probation, as follows: The first paymentlin the amount of $179.27 is due within
ihe first thirty (30) days following the effective date of the Decision and Order adopting this |

stipulation, Thereafler, twenty-three (23} monthly payments each in the amount.of §179.27 shall

the effecti-vc date, .

There silall be no deviation from this schedule abseﬁt prior writtert approval by the Board or
its designee. Failure to pay costs.by the‘deadline(sj as directed shall be considered a violation of
probation, |

] :
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The filing of bankruptey by respondent shall not relieve respondent of his responsibility to
reimburse the Board its costs 6f .investigation and prosceution,

9. Probation Monitoring Costs

Respondent shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as determined by the
board each and every year of probétion Such costs shall be payable to the Board on a schedule
as directed by the Board o its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the deadline(s) as directed
shall be GOl’lSldCl ed a Vlolatlon of probation,

10, Status of License

Respondent shall, at 'all times while on pfobétion, maintain an active, current license with
the Board, including any period during which suspension or i)robation is tolled. Failute to
maintain an .active, currenf license shall be congidered a violation of pro_bation.

If respondent's license expires or is cancelled by opetation of law or otherwise at a,ny time
during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof due to tolling or otherwise, upon

renewal or reapplication respondent's license shall be subject to all terms and conditions of this

' probation not previously satisfied,

11, License Surrender While on Probation

Foliowing the effective date of this dccision, should respondent cease practice due to
1'eti1*elﬁent or health, ot be otherwise unable Lo satisfy the terms and conditions of probation,
respondent may tendcr his license to the bomd for surrender, The Board or its dc*,lgncc shall

havc the discretion whethor to grant the roqucst for surrender or tak(, any othet action it deems

appropriate and reasonable, Upon f ormal acceptance of the surrender of the license, Lespondont

will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions of ]f)lDbdllOll This surrender consutules a
record of discipline and shall become a patt of the respondent’s license histoty with the Board. .
Upon acceptance of the surreﬁd.ei‘, respondent sha_ll relinqﬁish his pocket' and wall Iicens;c to
the Board within ten (10 days of notification by the Board that the surrender is accepted, | '
Respondent may not reapply for any license from the Bbarcl for three (3) yeérs from the effective

date of the sutrender, Respondent shall meet all requireﬁnents épplicable to the license sought ag

g
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of the date the application for that license is submitted to the Board, including any outstanding
costs,

12.  Notifieation of a Ch'mge in Name, Residence Address, Malllng Address or

‘ Dmployment

Respondent shall notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of any change of
employment. Said notification shall include the reasons for leaving, the address of the new
employer, the name of the supervisor and owner; and the wofk schedule if known. Respondent
shall further hotify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of a change in name, residence
address, mailing address, or phone number. |

Failure to timely notify the Board of any change in employer(s), name(s), adciress(es), or
phone number(s) shall be considered a violation of probation,

13, Pharrﬁacists’ Recovery Program (PRP)

Within thirﬁr (30) days of the effective date of this decision, respondent shail contact the
Pharmacists Recovery Program (PRP) for evaluation, and shall immediately thercafter enroll,
successfully participate in, and complete the treatment contract and aﬁy. subsequent addéndums as
recotmended and provided by the PRP and as approved by the Board or its'designee, The costs
for PRP parﬁ cipation shall be borne by the respondent. |

If reépondcnt is currently enrolled in the PRP, gaid participation is now mandatory and as of
the cffective date of this decision is no longer considered a selfreferral undu Buqmcss and

Professions Codc section 43 62(0)(2) Respondent shall successfully pamclpate in and complete

‘his current contract and any subsequent addendums with the PRP;

Failure to timely contact or enroll in the PRP, or suceessfully participate in and complete
the treatment contract and/or any addendums, shall be considered a viblation of probation.

Probation shall be automatically extended until respondent successfully completes the PRP.
Any p-erson terminated from the PRP program shall be automatically suspended by the Board.
Respondent may not resume the‘ practice of pharmdcy until notified by the Board in writing,

Any confirmed positive test for alcohol or for any drug not lawfully presdribed by a
licensed practitioner as part of a do cuméntecl medical treatment shall result in the automatic

. :
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suspension of practice by respondent and shall be considered a violation of probation,

| Respondent may not resume the practice of pharmacy until notified by the Boatd in writing,

During suspension, respondent shall not enter any pharmacy area or any poriion of the.
licensed premises of a wholesaler, veterinary food-animal drug retailer or any other distributor of

drugs which is licensed by the board, or any manufacturer, or where dangerous drugs and devices

or controlled substances are maintained, Respondent shall not practice pharmacy nor do any act

involving drug selection, selection of stock, manufacturing, compounding, diépensing ot patient
consultation; nor shall respondent manage, administer, _61: be a consultant to aﬁy licensee of the
board, or have access {o or control the ordering, manufacturing or dispensing of dangerous drugs
and controlled substances, Respondent shall not tesume practice until notified by the Board,
Du'ring suspension, respondent shall not engage in any activity that requires the |

professional judgment of a pharmacist. Respondent shall not direct ot control any aspe'ét of'the

| practice of pharmacy, Respondent shall not petform the duties of a pharmacy technician or a

designated representative for any entity licensed by the Board.

Subj c—:ét to the above resirictions, respondent may continue to own or hold an interest in any
licensed premises in which he holds an interest at the iime this decision becomes effective unless
otherwise specified in this Order. | .

Failure to comply with this suspension shall be considered a violation of probation,

Respondent shall pay administfative fees as invoiced by the PRP or ifs dgsigﬁee. F'ees not

timely paid to the PRP shal! constitute a violation for probation. The Board will collect unpaid

‘administrative fees as part of the annual probation monitoring costs if not submitted to the PRP.

14, Random D-rug'Screening |

Respondent, at his own expense, shall participate in random testing, including but not
limited 1o biological {luid testing (urine, blood}, breathalyzer, hair follicle testing, or otﬁer drug
scteening program-as ditected by the Board or its designee. Respondent may be required to
participate in testing for the entire probation period and the frequency of testing will be

detetmined by the Board or its designee, At all times, respondent shall fully cooperate with the

‘board or its designee, and shall, when directed, submit to such tests and samples for the detection

9
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of alcohol, narcotics, hypnotics, dangerous drugs or other controlled substances as the board or its
designee may direct. Failure to timely submit to testing as directed sha}ll be considered a violation
of probation. Upon request of the Board or its designee, respondent shall provide documentation
from a licensed practitioner that ’;he preseription for a detected drug was legitimately issued and is
a necessary part of the treatment of the respondent, Failure to timely provide smh clocumcntatmn
shall be considered a violation of probation, - Any confirmed positive test for alcohol or for 2 wny
drug not lawfully prescribed by a licensed practitioner as part of a documented medical treatment
shall be congidered a vidlation of probation and shall result in the automatic suspension of
practice of pharmacy by respondenﬁ R.espondent may not resume the practice of pharmacy until
notified by the Board in writing,

During suspension, respondent shall not énter any pharmacy area or any portion of the

licensed premises of a wholesaler, veterinary food-animal drug retailer or any other distributor of |

drugs which is licensed by the Board, ot any manufacturer, or where d;mgerous drugs and devices
or controlled substances are maintained. Respo_ndeilt. Sﬁall n"of p;acti(_ze pharmagy nor do any act
involving drug selection, selection of stock, manufacturing, compounding, dispensing_or patient
consultation; ndr shall respondent manage, administer, or be a consultant to any licgnsee of the
board, or have access to or control the ordering, manufacturing or dispensing of dangerous drugs
and controlled substanées. Respondent shall ﬁot resume Iﬁl'acti_ce until notified by the Board.

During suspension respondeﬁt shall 116t engage in any activity that requires ﬂ1erprofess7io_nal
judgment of a pharmacist Respondent shall not direct or control any aspect of the practice of
pharmacy, Rcspondent shall not perform the duhes of a pharmacy techmcmn or a desi gna,ted
representative for any entity licensed by the Boald

Subject to the above restrictions, respondent may continue to own or hold an interest in any
licensed premises in which he holds an intercst at the time this Decision becomes effective unless
otherwise specified in this Order.

Failure to comply with this suspension shall be considered a violation of probation;

.
111

10

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (Accusation Case No. 5760)




~] @ W B W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19
20

21
.22
23
24
25
26
27
28

treatment of the respondent. Failure to timely provide such documentation shall be considered a

15, Abstain from Drugs and Alcohol Use

Respondent shall completely abstain from the possession or use of alcohol, controlled
substances, dangerous drugs and their associated paraphernalia except when the"drugs are
lawfully prescribed bya lioensed practitioner as part of a documented medical treatment. Upon
request of the Board or its designee, respondent shall provide documentation from the licensed

practitioner that thc'ﬁrescription for the drug was legilimately issued and is a necessary part of the

violation of probation, Respondent shall ensure l,:hat he is not in the same phj/sigal lo_oation ay
individuals Who are using illicit substances e;ven if respondent is not personally ingesting the
drugs. Any possession or use of aleohol, controlled substances, or their assoclated paraphernalia
not suppotted by the documentation timely provided, and/or any physical proximity to persons
using illicit substances, shall be cbnsidered a {fiolation of probation,

16. Prescription Coordination and Monitoring of Prescription Use

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date.of this decision, respondent shall submit to the
Board, for its prior approval, the name and qualifications of a single physician, nurse practitioner,
physician assistant, or psychiatrist of respondent’s choice, who shall be aware of the respondent's
history use of alcohol, and Who_ will coordinate and monitor a_ny prescriptions for respondent for
dangerous drugs, controlled substances or fnood-altering dr'ugs, The approved practitioner shall
be provided with a copy of the Board’s Accusation and Decision and Order, A record of this
notification must be provided to the Board upon tequest. Respondent shall sign a release
authorizing the practitioner to communicate with the Board about respondent’s treatment(s), The
coordinating physician, nutse practitioner, physician assistant, or psychiatrist shall report to the
board on a quarterly basis for the duration of probation regarding respondent's complian& with
this condition. If any substances considered addictive have been preseribed, the report shall
identify a program for the time limited use of any such sqbstances. The Board may require that
the single coordinating physician, nurse practitioner, physician assistant or psychiatrist be a
specialist in addictive medicine, or consult a specialist in addictive medicine, Should respondent,
for any reason, cease supervision by the approved practitioner, respondent shall notify the Board

11
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immediately and, within thirty (30) days of ceasing treatment, submit the name of & replacement

hysician, nurse practitioner, physician assistant, or psychiatrist of respondent’s choice to the
psy

Board or its designee for its prior approval. Failure to timely submit the selected practitioner or

replacement practitioner to the Board for approval, or to ensure the requited reporting thereby on
the quarterly reports, shall be considered a violation of probation.

If at any time an approved practitioner defermines that respondent is unable to practice
safely or independently ag a pharmaoist, the practitioner shall notify the Board immediately by
telephone aﬁd follow ﬁp by written letter within three (3) working days, Upon notification from
the Board of its designee of this determination, respondent shall be aufomatically suspended and
shall not resume practice until notiﬁec.i by the Board that practice may be resumed,

During étlspension, respondent shall not enter any pharmacy area or any portion of the

licensed premises of a wholesaler, veterinary food-animal drug retailer or any other distributor of

'~ drugs which is licensed by the Board, or any manufacturer, or where dangerous drugs and devices

| or controlled substances are maintained. Respondent shall not practice pharmacy nor do any act

involving drug seiection, séléction of stock, manufacturing, compounding, dispensing or patient
consultation; nor shall respondent manage, administer, or be a consultant to any licensee of the
Board, or have access to or control the ordering, manufacturing or dispensing of dangerous drugs
and controlled substances, Respondent shall not resume practice until notified by the Board.

l‘)ﬁring suspension, fespondent shall not engage in any activity that requires the
professiénal judgment of a phﬁrmacist. Resﬁondﬁent shall not direct or control any aspect of the
practice of pharmacy. Respondent shall not perform the duﬁes of a pharmacy technician or a
designated repr'esentative. for any entity licensed by the Board.

Subject to the above restrictions, tespondent may continye to own of iold an interest in any
licensed premises in Which he holds an interest at the time this decision becomes effective unless
otherwise specified in this order,

Failure to comply with this suspension shall be considered a violation of probation,

17, Supervise'd Practice | 7

During the period of probation, 1'éspondent shall practice only under the supervision of a

12
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decision, respondent shall not practice pharmacy and his license shall be antomatically suspended

decision in case number 5760 and is familiar with the required level of supervision as determined

‘Board. Failure to cause the direct supervisor and the phatmacist-in-charge to submit timely -

licensed pharmacist not on probation with the Board, Upon and afiet the effective date of this

until a supervisor is approved by the Board or its designee. The supervision shall be, as required
b¥ the board or its designec, either; |
Conlinuous — At least 75% of a work week
Sul;;stantial - At least 50% of a work week
Partial - At léast 25% of a work week
Daily Review ~ Supetvisor's review. of probationer's daily activities within 24 hours
Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, respondent shall have his ‘

supervisot submit notification to the Board in writing stating that the supervisor has read the

by the Board ot ils designee. It shall be the respondent’s responsibility to ensure that his

employer(s), pharmacist-in-charge and/or supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgement(s) to the

écknowledgements to the Board 'shall be considered a violation of probation,

_ If respondent changes ampléyment, ii shall be the respondent’s responsibility to ensure .that
his employer(s), pilarnlacist;in-cl1arge and/or s.ﬁpervisor(s) submit timely aéknowied_gement(s) to
the Board. Respondent shall have his new supervisor, within fifteen (i 5) days after employmcni
commences, s’ubfnit notification to the Board in writing stating the direct supervisor and '
pharmacist-in-charge have read the Decision in case number 5760 and is familiar with the level of
supervision as defermined by the Board. Respondent shall not practice pharmacy and his license
shall be automatically suspended until the Board or its designee approves a Ile‘W supervisor,
Failure to cause the direct supervisor and the pharmacist-in-charge to submit timely
acknowledgements to the Board shall be conéidered a violation of probation, N

Within ten (10) days of leaving employment, résponde?nt shall notify the Board in writing.
During suspension, 1'¢spd_ndc->nt. shall not enter any' pharmacy area or any portion of the
licensed premises ofa wholesaler, Veteriha;ry food-animal drug retailer or any other distributor of
drugs which is licensed by the Board, or any manufacturer, or where dangerous drugs and devices
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‘consultation; nor shall respondent manage, administer, ot be a consultant to any licensee of the

| parinership, or corporation surrently or hereinafter licensed by the Board, Respondent shali sell

or controlled substances are maintained. Respondent shall not practice pharmacy nor do any act

involving drug selgction, selection of stock, manufacturing, compounding, dispensing or pationt

Board, or have aceess 1o or conlrol the ordeting, manufacturing or dispensing of dangerous drugs -
and controlled substances. Respondent shall not resume practice until notified by the Board, |

Dm'ing suspension, respondent shall not engage in any activity that requires tﬁc
professional judgment of a pharmaciét. Respondent shall not direct or confrol einy aspect of the
practice of pharmacy, Respondent shall not perform the duties of a pharmacy technician or a
designated representative fof any entity licensed by the Board. |

' Subject to the above restrictions, respondent may continue to own or hold an inter;ast in any

licensed premises in .Whioh he holds an interest at the time thié decision becomes effective unless
otherwise specified in this Order. 7

Failure to comply with this suspension shall be considered a violation of probation,

18.  No Ownership of Licensed Premises

Respondent shall not own, have any legal or beneficial interest in, or serve as a manager,

administrator, member, officer, director, trustee, associate, or partner of any business, firm,

or tranSfer_ any legal or beneficial inferest in any ontity licensed by the Board within ninety (90)
days following the effective date of this Decision and shall immediately thcreafter provide written
proof thereof to the board. I“mlure to timely divest any legal or beneficial intern cst(s) or provide
documentation thereof shall be consldcred a violation of pmbamon '

Rcs pondent shall not acquire any new ownership, iegal or beneficial interest nor serve as a
manager, administrator, member, officer, director, trustee, associate, or partner of any additional
business, firm, partnership,- or corporation licensed by the Board, If rgaspondeht currently owns or
has any legal or beneficial interest in, or serves as a manage;r, adlﬁinistra.tor, memb@, officer,
directcn',ltrustee, agsociate, or partner of any business, firm, partnership, or corporation currently
or hereinafter licensed by the Bbatjd, respondent may continue to serve it?t such capacity or hold |
that interest,. but only to the e'xtentkof that position or iﬁterest as of the effective date of this
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Decision, Violation of this restriction shall be considered a violation of probation,
19, Criminal Probation/Parole Reports
Respondent shall 'provide a copy of the conditions of any ctiminal probation/parole to the

Board, in writing, within ten (10) days of the issuance or modification of those conditions,

Respondent shall provide the name of his probation/parole officer to the Board, in writing, within

ten (10) days after that officer is designated or a replacement for that officet is designated.
Respondent shall provide a copy of all eriminal probation/parole reports to the Board within ten

(10) days afler. resporident receives a copy of such a report, Failure to timely make any of the

| submissions required hereby shall be considered a violation of probation,

20. Ethics Course
Within sixty (60) calendar days of the effective date of this decision, respondent shall enroll
in a course in ethics, at respondent’s expense, approved in advance by the Board or its designee,

Failure to initiate the course during the first year of prbbation, and complete it within the second

year of probation, is a violation of probation,

Respondent shall submit & certificate of completion to the Board or its designee within five
days after completing the course.

21, Tolling of Probation |

Fxcept during periods of suspension, respondent shall, at all times v&hile on probation, be

employed as a pharmacist in California for a minimum of 40 hours pei' calendar month, Any

“month during which this minimum is not met shall toll the period of probation, i.e., the period of

probation shall be extended by one month for cach month during which this ininiinufn is not met,
Duririg any such period of tolling of probation, respondent must nonctheless comply with all
termis and conditions of probation, l |

wauid respondent, 1;ega1'dless of residency, for any reason (including vacation) cease
practiciné as a pharmacist for a minimum of forty (40) hours per calendar month in California,
respondent must notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of the cessation of practice, and
must further notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of the resumption of practice. Any
failure to provide such notification(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

5
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board shall have cohtinuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be automatically

It is a violation of probation for respondent's probation to remain tolled pursuant o the
provisions of this condition for a total period, counting consecutive and non-consceutive months,
exceeding thirty-six (36) months,

"Cessation of practice" means any calendar month during which respondent is not
practicing as a pharmacist for at least forty (40) hours, as defined by Business and Professions
Code section 4000 et seq . "Resumption of practice” means any calendar month during which
respondent is practicing as a pharmacist for at least forty (40) hours as a pharmacist as defined by
Business and Professions Code section 4000 et $eq. '

22. Violation of Probation

Ifa respondenf has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the Board shall
have continuing jurisdiction’ over respondent, and probation shall automatically be extended, until
all terms and conditions have been satisfied or the Board has taken other actioﬁ as deemed
appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a violation of probation, to terminate probation, and
to impose the peﬁalty that was stayed_; .

If respondént violates probaﬁon in any respect, the Board, after giving respondent notice
and an opportunity to be hc'ud may revoke probation and catry out the dlsc,lphnaly order that
was stayed. Notme and opportunity to be heard are not required for thoqe provisions stahng that a
violation thereof may lead to automatic termination of the stay a:l;d/ or revocation of the license. If

a petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against respondent during probation, the

extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided.

23, Completion of Probation |

Upon written notice by the Board or its designee indicating suceessful complé:ﬂon of
prdbation, respondent's license ﬁ!ill be fully restored.

| | ACCEPTANCE

L have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplibary Order cmd have fully
disousscd it with my attorney, Jonathan K. Golden, qu [understand the stipulation and the
effect it will have on my Pharmacist License. I enter into this Stipulated Settlement and
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Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the

Decision and Order of the Board of Pharmacy.

o ¢ [r)i o kP
{ 7 “NFEAL SHIGERU NISHIMOTO ™
Respondent

1 have read and fully discussed with Respondent Neal Shigeru Nishimoto the terms and
conditions and other matters contaitied in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Otder.

1 approve its form and ¢ontent. '

vaTED: _£/2/17

T orneyfar Respondent

ENDORSEMENT
The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby réspc:ctfully
submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy.
DATED: ' -Respectfully submitted,
- XAVIER BECERRA
Attorney General of California

THOMAS L., RINALDJ
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

DESIREE TULLENERS
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant
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Decision and Order of the Board of Pharmacy.

v ~3 oy N .

" DATED:

I)Hmplmeuy Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the

DATED:

NEAL SHIGERU NISHIMOTO
Respondent

I have read and fully discussed with Respondent Neal Shigeru Nighimoto the terms and
conditions and other ‘matters eontained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order,

I approve its form and content, -

JONATHAN K, GOLDLN ESQ.
Attorney for Respondent

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully
submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy.
' Respectfully submitted,
XAVIER BECERRA . -
Attorney General of California

o THOMAS L, RINALDI
Supervising Deputy AHOIEX General

(2 m&ew)(’//,;,ﬂfw e {/\5

DESIREE TULLENERS
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant
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KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
LINDA K. SCHNEIDER
Senior Assistant Attorney General
MARC D. GREENBAUM
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 138213
300 So, Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-2579
Facstmile: (213) 897-2804
Atitorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
: STATE OF CALIFORNIA ™

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No, 5760
NEAL SHIGERU NISHIMOTO
43543 20th St. West

Lancaster, CA 93536 ACCUSATION
Pharmacist License No. RPH 45627

Respondent,

‘Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
as the Execuitive Officet of the Board of I’harmacy,-Department of Consumer Affairs.

2. Onorabout August 19, 1992, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License
Number RPH 45627 to Neal Shigeru Nishimoto (Respondent). The Pharmacist License was in
full force and effect at all times relovant to the charges brought herein and will expire on October
31, 2017, unless renewed. |

JURISDICTION

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of
Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the :t‘oll‘(')wing laws. All section refercnces are to the
Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

1
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4. Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both
the Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substances
Act [Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq.].

5. Section 4300 of the Code provides that every license issued by the Board may be
suspended or revoked.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS

6.  Section 4301 of the Code provides, in pertinent pait, that the Board shall take action

against any holder of a license who is guilty of "unprofessional conduct,” defined to include, but

not be limited to, any of the following:

(g) Knowingly making or signing any certificate or other document that falsély represents
the existence or nonexistence of a stato of facts.

(h) The administering to oneself, of any controtled substance, or the use of any dangerous
drug or of alecholic beverages to the extent or in & manner as fo be dangerous or injurious to
oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other person or to the public, or
to the extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to the public the

practice authorized by the license.

(k) The conviction of more than one misdemeanor or any feiony involving the use,
consumption, or self-administration of any dangerous drug or alcoholic beverage, or any
combination of those substances, |

() The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and dutics
of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapier 13
(commencing with Section 801} of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled
substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or
dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the
record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred.

The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order

2

( NEAL SHIGERU NISHIMOTO) ACCUSATION




—

= - - I~ 7, L - N VL S

to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances
or dangerous drugs, to determine if thé conviction is of an offense substantially related to the
qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or
a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is desmed to be a conviction within the meaning
of this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the
judgment of conviction bas been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made
suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of
the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not
guiity; or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, iﬁforn;ation, or

indictment.

(0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable
federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by

the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.

7. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:

- For the purpose of denieﬂ, suspension, ot revocation of a personal or facility license
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a
ctime or act shall be consideted substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a
licensee ot registtant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of s
licensee or registrant to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in a manner
consistent with the public health, salety, or welfare.

COST RECOVERY

8. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that a Board may request the
administrative law judge to dircct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum nol to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and

enforcement of the case,

{ NEAL SHIGERU NISHIMOTO) ACCUSATION
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Cfiminal Conviction)

9, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301, subsection
(1), in that she has been convicted of crimes substantially related to the qualifications, functions,
and duties of a licensee. The circumstances are ag follows:

10, Onor about Jaguary 15, 2015, in Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No.
4AV06558, Respondent was convicted of having violated California Vehicle Code section
23152(b) (driving with excessive blood alcohol level). Respondent admitted to having a previous
conviction for a DUI offense in 2008, The conviction was based on an incident which occurred
on or about September 26, 2014, during which Respondent drove a vehicle when his blood
alcohoi level was .19%.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Convictions Involving Dangerous Drugs or Alcohol)
11, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301, subsection (k),
in that he has been convicted of more than one crime involving the use, consumption or self.

administration of dangerous drugs and/or alcoholic beverages, as set forth above in paragraph 10,

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Danger(')us Use of Alcohol)

12, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301, subsection (h),
in that he administered to himself, or uséd, alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to
be dangerous or injurious to herself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any
other person or to the public, and/or to the extent that the use impaired his ability to conduct with
safety to the public the prﬁctice authotized by his license, as set forth above in paragraph 10,

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Misrepresentation on Renewal Application)
13. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301(g), in that he
knowingly made or signed a certificate or other document that feﬂse]y represented the existence or
nonexistence of a state of facts. -'111‘_16 circumstances are as follows:

4

( NEAL SHIGERU NISHIMOTO) ACCUSATION



L B W b

R B = R e N =

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24 -

25
26
27
28

14, Onor about October 1, 2015, Respondent signed and submitted an application to
renew his pharmacist license. Inthe application, Respondent checked “no” in response to the
following question: “Since you last renewed your license, have you had any license disciplined
by a government agency or other disciplinary body; or, have you been convicted of any crime in
any state, the USA and its territories, military court or a foreign country?” In actuality,
Respondent had been convicted of a crime, as set forth above in paragraph 10,

DISCIPLINE CONSIDERATIONS

15, To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent,
Complainant alleges as follows:

16. On or about April 10, 2001, in Mono Superior Court case number EJ1061,
Respondent was convicted of having violated California Vehicle Code section 23152(a) (driving
while intoxicated).

17. Onor about September 10, 2001, in Mono Superior Court case number EJ1061,

Respondent was convicted of having violated California Vehicle Code section 23152(a) (driving

while intoxicated with prior DUI convictions), a felony.

18. Onor about May 5, 2008, in Los Angeles Superior Court case nurnber §AV01925,
Resiaondent was convicted of having violated California Vehicle Code section 23152(b) (driving |
with excessive blood alcobol level). The conviction was based on an incident in which occurred
on or about January 24, 2008, during which Respondent drove a vehicle while his blood alcohol
level was .17%.

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issve a docision;

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPIH 45627, issued to Neal
Shigeru Nishimoto;

2. Ordering Neal Shigeru Nishimoto to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs
of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code

section 125.3;
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3.

DATED:

Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

1l

(o)

LA2016600328
£1524244.doc

VIRGINTA HEROLD

Executive Officer

Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant
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